
West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

April 13, 2020 

 

Present on conference call: Win Johnson, Brett Myers, Matt Kantola, Martha Harrison, Al 

Keiller, Erik Boedtker, Mike Spackman, Cathy Archibald, Amy Rusiecki, Tom Kenyon, Nancy 

Gaynor, Bill Ley, Laura Farrell 

 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Win Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. 

2) Changes or additions to the agenda – graffiti, Tree Warden resignation, VLCT proposal, 

community garden inquiry, Vermont 100  

3) Announcements/Public Comment – None 

4) Town Clerk’s Report – Orders: Win said he has signed the orders as authorized at the last 

meeting and there are copies in the shared folder. Win asked Matt and Brett if they had 

questions about any of the orders. Win said we paid Rice for some tree work. Tom said the 

only tree left to take down is the one by the maintenance garage.  

5) Updates – Emergency Management Coordinator: Mike said Martha’s been working on the 

Green Book and we’ve had a few calls to our non-emergency phone number but Nancy has 

been handling them. Health Officer: Nancy said we’ve had three calls and we’ve been able to 

handle them; people seem comfortable with the call system and appreciative of the help. 

Resort: Win said Leslie Barilli couldn’t make the meeting but she told Win that the resort, 

including the restaurant and the fitness center, are closed until June 15th. Area hospitals: Brett 

said it appears that everyone is doing a good job of staying home and “flattening the curve.” 

Brett said she has heard that Vermont is still expecting a peak in the next two to four weeks 

but it should be manageable. Brett added that Boston is getting hit pretty hard so we could 

see impacts from that; it’s hard to know. Al, who is on the Board of Mt. Ascutney Hospital, 

said they have prepared for a surge by expanding capacity from 35 beds to 60 beds, and 

setting up a respiratory clinic for symptomatic patients, who are screened as they come in, 

but the surge has not hit yet. Al said he has heard that Dartmouth-Hitchcock has also had a 

surge in capacity but has not had a surge in patients. Relief Funds: Win noted that 

Woodstock has set up an assistance fund for their residents and asked if there is a need for 

that in West Windsor. Brett suggested that we wait and see and revisit the idea if the need 

arises. Win noted that the church has an assistance fund. Al confirmed that the church has a 

fund for West Windsor residents and said Pastor Christian Huebner is the contact person. 

Tom noted that the Campbell Fund has received no requests for help. Vermont 100 race: Win 

said Laura Farrell contacted him for his thoughts on holding the event or cancelling it. Matt 

said we should follow the Governor’s advice. Amy said the race date does not fall within the 

timeframe of the Governor’s order but they don’t want to hold the event without Town 

support, so the race organizers are hoping for a date when the Town will make a “go/no go” 

decision. Amy noted that the Race Committee is meeting tomorrow night. Laura said she 

thinks the Town has the authority to make decisions about large events. Laura said there are 

hundreds of people involved in this event from all over the country and the world so we can’t 

make a decision at the last minute. Win said most of the big events he has heard about are 

being rescheduled for fall. Laura noted that the Vermont 100 is not a sterile event. Win asked 

Laura and Amy to report back after their meeting tomorrow night. Win said if the committee 

wants to proceed, he suspects the Selectboard would be reluctant to agree without some very 



persuasive reasons why holding the event is warranted. Brett said we don’t have to make a 

decision now; we have some time. Matt asked Laura and Amy what their drop dead date is 

for making a decision. Amy said they will discuss that tomorrow night. Amy said there are 

some international participants who are already cancelling. Amy said she doesn’t want the 

Town to feel pressured either way. Win said a lot of the Vermont 100 volunteers are in a 

vulnerable age group. Win said we’ll have to make a decision by the second week of May. 

Laura noted that the event does bring a lot of people to town from out of state and they stay 

at the hotel and shop at the store. Erik said emergency responders are trying to limit their 

interactions with people; events are very important to the Town and he doesn’t want to 

discourage them but we do have to think about the risk to our population with people coming 

from all over. Amy said even if the committee decides to go ahead, that decision could 

change in another few weeks. Fourth of July: Bill said he and Linda and Karen Diop have 

been discussing the July 3rd and 4th event and will be guided by the Governor and the Town. 

Bill said they don’t have any funds at stake yet and they are thinking about the risk given that 

many participants come from out of state. Bill said he can update the Selectboard at the end 

of the month. Win said when we have to make a decision it will be hard to approve one event 

and not another.  

6) Designate school bulletin board as temporary location for posting agendas – Win moved to 

designate the school bulletin board as a temporary location for posting agendas until 

the store re-opens. Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

7) Planning Commission appointments – Win moved to appoint Leah Montalbano and 

Lauren Stevens to the Planning Commission. Brett seconded the motion. Al shared some 

background information. Win called for a vote on the motion, which passed unanimously.  

8) Consider extending late fee waiver for dog license renewals (if necessary) – Cathy said the 

deadline was extended through April 30th at the last meeting. Win asked Cathy if there are 

still a lot outstanding. Cathy said yes; there are quite a few. Matt suggested putting a sign out 

again. Win said we have the non-emergency phone number posted on the sandwich board 

sign, but we could get another one. Brett agreed to put up a sign on the bulletin board. Win 

asked Martha to post a reminder on Front Porch Forum.  

9) Adopt Local Emergency Management Plan – Win said there is a copy of the plan in the 

folder. Win moved to adopt the plan and authorize Martha to sign the adoption form. 

Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

10) Continuity of Operations planning – Win said one thing that has come up is the possible need 

for an alternate Selectboard member. With a three-member board, if two members were 

unable to participate, the Town would not have a governing board and would be unable to 

make decisions. Win said he talked with Glenn and Shelley Seward and both said they would 

be willing to serve if that, hopefully unlikely, situation arose. Brett said that’s great. Win said 

he doesn’t think both of them could serve at the same time so we should probably come up 

with some additional prospects. Win asked Martha if the Selectboard needs to take formal 

action. Martha said no; it’s just helpful to have prospects, who are willing to serve if 

necessary, that the current Selectboard members would be comfortable appointing.      

11) Highway Foreman’s report – Sand and gravel bids: Mike said Twin State has the best price 

for gravel at $8.45 per ton, and D&D has the best price for winter sand at $7.75 per cubic 

yard, so he would recommend accepting those two bids. Win moved to approve Mike’s 

recommendation. Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Contractor 

bids: Mike said we got three bids from Dan Lesnick, Jim Farrell and Kristian Kurtzhalz. 



Mike said Kristian Kurtzhalz’s excavator bid was $5/hr. cheaper than Dan Lesnick’s bid, but 

he would recommend using Dan because Dan has other equipment that Kristian doesn’t have 

and Dan has experience working for multiple towns, including West Windsor. Brett moved 

to accept Mike’s recommendation. Matt seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously. Update on culvert replacement projects/highway structure grants: Mike said 

everything’s on hold, but if you don’t order the box, you can’t get it installed. Mike said Jon 

Murphy ordered the culvert for the Biebel project last fall and the Rush Meadow culvert last 

week for installation in August. Win asked if we can get reimbursed for the culverts 

themselves, even if we can’t install them right away. Mike said we’ll get reimbursed 

eventually. Win said he doesn’t want to wait a year; as soon as we have paperwork for the 

culvert fabrication, we should ask for reimbursement. Mike said the culvert for the Biebel 

project was made last year and they haven’t billed us yet. Win asked Martha to communicate 

with AOT about our plans to request reimbursement if we get billed for materials. Grants-in-

aid projects: Martha said everything is on hold for now. Foreman’s Report: Mike said he 

picked up the new chloride trailer last week. The highway crew has been resurfacing roads 

and the grading is about 80% complete. The paddles for the hydroseeder are being rebuilt, 

but it should be ready soon. The speed cart is ready to go and he will contact the Sergeant 

tomorrow about setting it up. Bill said there’s still a speed problem on Brownsville-Hartland 

Road. There was discussion about where on the road to place it. Brett said Linda Glock has 

complained about speeding near her place.  

12) Update on Burke property projects – Win said LE Environmental’s work has been put on 

hold but they said it was okay for us to go ahead and start the excavation for the sand pile and 

the salt shed. Mike said he plans to start re-grading this week. Martha said she emailed 

Shawn Donovan on March 24th and told him what we were planning and asked him to let us 

know as soon as possible if he had any issues.  

13) Update on grant application for stormwater gully remediation design – Win said we’ve heard 

from the regional planning commission that the funding source has dried up so this project is 

not going to get done within the expected timeframe. Martha said ANR may even rescind 

some of the grants they’ve already awarded.  

14) Town Plan/Municipal Planning Grant update – Martha said she requested an extension of 

time to complete the grant requirements and has been assured that applicants who have a 

valid reason for their request will be granted extensions.  

15) Water & Sewer update – Win noted Martha’s summary in the folder. Win said the water 

volume is way down in the low zone since the hotel closed. The mystery is that the sewer 

volume is not down. Martha has been looking into that with the crew at the treatment facility 

and it may be an anomaly with the monitoring system rather than the actual flow volume. 

Win noted that the water and sewer projects are also on hold.   

16) Solar contract adjustments – Win noted Martha’s adjustments to the solar contract 

allocations, which are reflected on Exhibit C in the folder.  

17) March Police Report – With a couple of exceptions, Win said it was a fairly routine report.  

18) Other Business – Graffiti: Win noted a complaint about graffiti in the Front Porch Forum. 

Mike said there was graffiti on the big telephone box at the bottom of Hammond Hill. Win 

suggested spray painting over it if it’s offensive. Mike suggested checking with the phone 

company before doing anything. Matt said he’ll share a photo of it. Tree Warden: Win said 

he has an idea for a replacement for Tom Kenyon but he wants to check with the person 

before providing the name. Mike said he has an idea too. Signage: Bill suggested moving the 



large bulletin board that is outside the Town Hall back to the store property. Bill also pointed 

out that the flag at the Town Hall is torn. Win said we have ordered a replacement flag. 

VLCT proposal: Win said VLCT is asking towns to support four proposals: to authorize local 

legislative bodies to waive interest and penalties on late property tax payments during the 

COVID emergency; to authorize local legislative bodies to lower current tax rates to reflect 

lower municipal expenses; to enact legislation that would eliminate the severe penalties that 

would ordinarily accrue to towns making incomplete education fund property tax payments 

to the school district or education fund; and to require the state to borrow the dollars that are 

needed to make the Education Fund whole on the dates in 2020 upon which payments from 

towns are due, if need be, given the state’s capacity to make an interfund loan to itself as no 

interest cost. Win said the first one may not apply to us unless the emergency extends way 

beyond what we hope; and the second one may not either since we are carrying on as 

anticipated and don’t expect lower expenses. The third and fourth ones may be helpful for us 

if sufficient tax payments don’t come in. Win said he doesn’t know why we wouldn’t support 

all four proposals. Brett asked if people are going to be unable to pay their property taxes. 

Win said the proposal only authorizes the waiving of interest and penalties “during the 

COVID emergency,” which only goes until May 15th and we don’t assess interest and 

penalties during that period. Win said we may have to revisit this in the fall. Win asked Brett 

and Matt if they are okay with him contacting Zach Ralph to discuss this proposal. Brett and 

Matt had no objections. Matt said there may be some expenditures that we want to cut in 

light of what’s going on. Win asked Matt and Brett to review the budget and note any 

expenses they think may be affected. Matt noted that the Library is closed, and suggested 

substituting a split-rail fence for the stonewall at the cemetery. Win asked Mike if he 

anticipates any savings in the highway budget as a result of all this. Mike said no; not at this 

time. Martha said if the Selectboard decides to furlough the Librarian, they may want to do it 

in a way that makes him eligible for unemployment. Matt said that’s a good point. 

Community garden: Win said he was asked whether the Town has had any requests to start a 

community garden. Matt said the school has a small greenhouse and some raised beds, but 

said he would also support a community garden. Win suggested trying to find out if the 

community is interested and, if so, the Town may want to provide a small stipend for 

someone to manage it. Mike said if the Town can locate a site, he will volunteer to prepare 

the garden. Since a possible site has been suggested, Win said he will contact the owner to 

see if he is interested in allowing the use of his property. Martha noted the Governor’s “stay 

home” order through May 15th at least. Matt agreed that this may not be the summer to start a 

community garden, but we can plan it for next year.   

19) Approve Minutes – Brett moved to approve the minutes of March 23rd. Matt seconded 

the motion, which passed unanimously.  

20) Adjourn – Brett moved to adjourn at 8:07 PM. Matt seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 


